
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION OF THE 
BOROUGH OF SADDLE RIVER 
HELD:  SEPTEMBER 28, 2015  
     

 1 

PRESENT: Commission Chairman Bob LaViano, Commission Members: Nik Aktas, Nicholas 
Turturro, Emily Kaufman, Jeff Liva, Planning Board Rep. 
Paul Schulstad, Council Rep  

 
ABSENT: Commission Members Jerry DeCrosta, Ron Yates,   
 
PRESIDING:  Commission Chairman LaViano called the meeting to order at 6:45pm; 
   Commission Secretary Joy Convertini read the following statement:   
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:   “Notice of this meeting in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act 
Chapter 231 of the laws of 1975, has been given by posting a notice of the scheduled dates of 
all regular meetings of the Environmental Commission of the Borough of Saddle River on the 
bulletin board in the Municipal Building and in the office of the Borough Clerk and by emailing a 
notice thereof to the Herald News and The Record on December 31, 2014 and on the Borough 
website.” 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:    A motion was made to approve the June 22, 2015 minutes by 
Nicholas Turturro.  Seconded by Jeff Liva 
Roll Call Vote: AYES: Unanimous 
 
WORK SESSION:   
 
Deer Management Issue:   
 
Members of the Environmental Commission and the Wildlife Management Committee met jointly 
to address the deer issue in Saddle River. Dr. Duncan Carpenter and Patty Nazzaro, members of 
the Wildlife Management Committee were present. Council Member Schulstad is the Council 
representative to the Environmental and a member of the Wildlife Management Committee.    
 
Bob LaViano stated that the first step will be to review the existing Ch. 109 of the Borough 
Code – “Firearms”.  It was decided that 109-1.B, which sites an exception to weapons discharge 
as follows:  “In the killing of vermin or other animals causing damage to property; however in 
no event shall the caliber used for such purposes exceed .25” be completely eliminated.   
He further stated that he would like to make this recommendation to the Mayor and Council for 
their introduction at the October 19, 2015 meeting.   
 
Patty Nazzaro addressed other language in the existing ordinance and stated that changes 
should be made to comply with state law.   
 
Council Member Schulstad stated that he has been working on this for some time and the 
Borough Attorney will be reviewing this prior to the October meeting of the Mayor and Council.  
He further stated that he was in agreement with removing the above-referenced language from 
the existing ordinance.  
 
Bob LaViano stated that he does not think the ordinance will be adopted unless language 
permitting the killing of vermin is removed.  Council Member Schulstad was in agreement that 
this paragraph should be removed from the existing ordinance. Other language in the ordinance 
was addressed in detail at this time.   



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION OF THE 
BOROUGH OF SADDLE RIVER 
HELD:  SEPTEMBER 28, 2015  
     

 2 

Patty Nazzaro stated that she feels that this ordinance does not offer enough control as it 
relates to deer hunting and Bob LaViano stated that this is very difficult to implement.    
He further stated that the land owner where any hunting would take place would have to grant 
permission, hunters would be in an elevated position and they would only be shooting at deer. 
Professional deer hunters are very skilled and methodical, minimizing the chances of any 
danger to the public; every deer must be tagged and accounted for after being killed.  Hunters 
will have to follow stated regulations as it relates to hunting only during deer season.    
 
Bob LaViano stated that, once an ordinance is passed, a handbook for both hunters and 
residents should be developed and distributed so the protocol is carefully spelled out. 
He further stated that inaction on this issue will only compound the problem.  
 
He further stated that perhaps a parallel program can be put in place to manage the deer 
problem, although these programs are cost prohibitive.   
 
Council Member Schulstad stated that he would like to consider recommending to the Mayor 
and Council that the ordinance be amended, a handbook be created on this issue and the 
evaluation of a non-lethal program that would run parallel to bow hunting be considered.  
 
There will be a presentation given by the New Jersey Division of Fish and Wildlife on October 1, 
2015 at 7:00pm in the Borough Hall.  They will outline the deer problem in Saddle River and 
make recommendations on the most viable methods for controlling this problem.      
 
OPEN TO THE PUBLIC:    
 
Debbi Hardesty, 15 East Saddle River Road asked if the residents would get an opportunity to 
vote on amending this ordinance and Bob LaViano explained the democratic process of 
government.  She further stated that the League of Humane Voters of New Jersey have signed 
a petition against bow hunting in Saddle River; she will share this petition under advisement.   
She further stated that she would like experts to have the opportunity to come to Saddle River 
to address non-lethal methods for controlling the deer population.   
 
Angie Mettler, Executive Director of League of Humane Voters stated that her information on 
the deer management is scientific.  She outlined a surgical sterilization method that could be 
implemented in Saddle River for approximately $22 per home owner for 40 deer or $40,000 per 
year.  She further stated that hunting ultimately results in a greater deer population.   
 
Nik Aktas asked how many municipalities in New Jersey and New York have utilized this 
program and she stated that none to date as The Division of Fish and Wildlife will not permit 
this.   
 
Ms. Mettler stated that immune-contraception is the best alternative and she would like the 
opportunity for the representative who runs this program to give a presentation on this to the 
public.   
 
Jeff Liva stated that he feels that this could be a viable solution, however the funding will be an 
issue; he suggested that the money be raised by the advocates of this alternative.   
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION OF THE 
BOROUGH OF SADDLE RIVER 
HELD:  SEPTEMBER 28, 2015  
     

 3 

Nicholas Turturro asked to address the cost of this program again and Ms. Mettler stated that it 
would be approximately $40,000 for 40 deer per year.  A five year program, which is 
recommended, is $200,000.  There are two options; surgical sterilization which requires 
anesthesia, or oral sterilization.   
 
Bob LaViano stated that he feels that this program, which could be funded by advocates of non-
lethal deer management methods, could work together with bow hunting to significantly reduce 
the current deer population in Saddle River.   Ms. Mettler stated that this organization would not 
fund a program if it was conducted in conjunction with bow hunting. 
 
Rockwell Schwartz, Ridgewood, NJ stated that she feels that permitting bow hunting will set a 
precedent in Bergen County and she is uncomfortable with that.  Her college did a study 
regarding deer management, with three culls over a three year time period and she explained 
this program in detail at this time, highlighting the fact that this program was ineffective and 
actually increased the deer population over time.  She stated that she would like to request that 
other alternatives be evaluated by the Borough of Saddle River.  
 
Bob LaViano stated that he was not in agreement that conducting a cull could actually increase 
the deer population.     
 
Jeff Liva stated that he feels that Saddle River could utilize this as a pilot program, if the 
company was willing to provide the funding. 
 
Mark Nagelhort, Park Ridge, NJ stated that he enjoys having wildlife on his property and he 
understands their behavior.  He is not in favor of bow hunting.   
 
Bob LaViano stated this has become a quality of life issue and currently, the deer population in 
Saddle River are presenting a public health risk.     
 
James Goldfarb, 21 Arrowhead Lane stated that he is not in favor of bow hunting in Saddle 
River as he feels it is a danger to the residents.  The discharge of weapons must be prohibited 
in Saddle River.    He asked why there is a need to reduce the population of deer in Saddle 
River; the risk of Lyme disease, the deforestation of the understory and traffic related accidents 
were cited as the three chronic problems.  He encouraged the Council to not permit the 
discharge the weapons in Saddle River. 
 
An unidentified resident stated that mice are the number one vector for the carrying of Lyme 
disease; deer do not transmit this disease. 
 
Council Member Kerner was present and she stated that there will be several opportunities for 
the Borough to hear presentations from non-lethal alternatives.  She further stated that she 
would like to see additional data on all aspects of this issue.  All of the non-lethal groups are 
funded by their supporters and she would like to see the Mayor and Council make an educated 
decision on this issue after obtaining as much knowledge as possible.   
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION OF THE 
BOROUGH OF SADDLE RIVER 
HELD:  SEPTEMBER 28, 2015  
     

 4 

Ms. Hardesty stated that she did not feel that the residents were sufficiently informed about this 
issue and Bob LaViano stated that each resident was sent a letter regarding deer management 
in Saddle River, this has been addressed by the Mayor and Council and the Environmental 
Commission for some time and notices were on the Borough website.  
 
A Saddle Brook resident asked how many deer are projected to live in Saddle River; Bob 
LaViano stated that he would estimate approximately 300+.   He further stated that there is a 
noticeable increase within the Borough.   She further stated that she spoke with several 
residents in Saddle River and they were not in favor of bow hunting. 
 
Bob LaViano reiterated that, should the Borough opt to permit deer hunting, it would be for a 
definitive time period and would take place on four to five of the larger parcels of land in the 
town, with consent from the property owner.     
 
He explained the field dressing and disposal regulations and emphasized that any hunters 
violating these regulations, will be prohibited from further hunting.  He further stated that he is 
of the opinion that this is the most viable option for Saddle River at this point in time.   
 
It was decided that a separate public meeting would be set up in order for a non-lethal program 
to be addressed.   Council Member Schulstad stated that this meeting does not necessarily need 
to take place before the October Mayor and Council meeting.  Arriving at a solution that the 
majority of the residents feel comfortable with, could be a lengthy process.       
  
Council Member Schulstad read the following recommendations to be included in a letter for 
distribution to the Mayor and Council:  
 

 Vote to introduce the amendment to Borough Code Chapter 109 “Firearms” that 
was circulated to members of the Environmental and Wildlife Commissions on 
September 27, 2015 while striking Paragraph 109-1.B “In the killing of vermin…” 

 

 Develop a handbook with recommendations for residents and hunters on the safe 
and effective implementation of this ordinance in Saddle River, should it become 
law. 

 

 Solicit actionable proposals from outside groups that will reduce the deer 
population using non-lethal methods. 

 

 Consider that the discharge of weapons for bow hunting be conditioned on the 
prior written disclosure to all contiguous neighbors of the property on which 
weapons discharge is intended to take place. 

 
A motion to approve these points for the letter of recommendation was offered by Bob LaViano 
Seconded by Council Member Schulstad.  Voice Vote:  All AYES  
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION OF THE 
BOROUGH OF SADDLE RIVER 
HELD:  SEPTEMBER 28, 2015  
     

 5 

Tree Maintenance & Removal 
 
Bob LaViano stated that he would like to continue identifying dead and hazardous trees 
throughout town so they can be removed.  He further stated that Borough Engineer Martin 
Spence should be made aware of these trees. 
 
 
Tree Planting & Status of Tree City Designation   
 
The Tree City Designation requires that a Tree Committee be appointed and this was discussed 
in detail.   
 
Bob LaViano further stated that the Environmental Commission should be responsible for 
making recommendations for the replacement of trees on main roadways.   
 
Exxon Property 
 
The Environmental Commission discussed potential ideas for this property, located at the corner 
of East Allendale Road and West Saddle River Road.   Bob LaViano suggested that native 
planting be installed and perhaps connect it with a walkway to Rindlaub Park.  The Commission 
reviewed a site map of the property at this time.   
 
Roadside Appearance 
 
Bob LaViano stated that he feels that there has been an improvement along Borough roadways 
and the Commission discussed holding a “chipper day”.     
 
ADJOURNMENT:  A motion was made and seconded to adjourn the regular meeting of the 
Environmental Commission. 

 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Joy C. Convertini 
Secretary 


